
 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
July 20, 2023 
A G E N D A 

Place: Big Bear Municipal Water District 
 40524 Lakeview Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 
 Next Resolution Number:  2023-04        
 

OPEN SESSION: 1:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. PUBLIC FORUM 

(The Board will receive comments from the public on items not on the agenda; no action is 
permitted on these items. Time set aside not to exceed 30 minutes total by all participants) 

 
4. REPORTS 

A. General Manager 
B. Committee- the following committee met since the last regular Board meeting: 

       Administrative 
       Operations 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes of a Regular Meeting on July 6, 2023. 
B. Warrant list dated 7/14/2023 in the amount of $2,016,426.25. 

 
6. BUSINESS 

A. Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a 
recommendation for full Board consideration regarding the bids received from 
Bear Valley Paving and NPG for the district’s main office parking lot improvement 
project. 
B. Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a 
recommendation for full Board consideration regarding the bids received from 
Bear Valley Paving and NPG for the east ramp parking lot improvement project. 

 

Big Bear Municipal Water District 
  
 
Lake Management Board of Directors 

Steve Ludecke – Division 1 
Bob Rehfuss – Division 2 

Craig Brewster – Division 3 
Mark Lee – Division 4 

Tom Bradford – Division 5 
 



AGENDA - Board of Directors/ July 20, 2023     
  
 
7.  ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AND PLACED ON BUSINESS 
 
8.  ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
9. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT  
  
NEXT MEETING: Open Session at 1:00 P.M.  

Thursday, August 3, 2023 
40524 Lakeview Drive 
Big Bear Lake, CA 92315  

 
 
PLEASE NOTE:   
Agenda related writings or documents provided to the Board of Directors are available for public inspection at 
www.bbmwd.com or in the District office during business hours, 8:00 am – 4:30 pm Monday – Friday. 
 
Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker for an item on the agenda and three (3) minutes may be allotted to 
each speaker for an item that is not on the agenda up to a maximum of thirty minutes for each subject matter. A speaker 
who utilizes a translator, except if the speaker uses simultaneous translation equipment, shall receive twice the time 
allotted for a speaker that does not utilize a translator. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54954.3.) 
 
No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in boisterous or disruptive conduct (including 
but not limited to what the general public would consider prophane, explicit, or obscene language) shall be grounds for a 
summary termination, by the President, of that person’s privilege to address the Board and the President may take such 
other actions in accordance with the Brown Act including, but not limited to, clearing the room of those willfully 
interrupting the meeting. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54957.9) 
 
Individuals should contact the General Manager or designee if he/she requires disability-related accommodation or 
modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the Board meeting.  (Government Code 
54954.2) 
 

http://www.bbmwd.com/


  
  

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

HELD ON THURSDAY, July 6, 2023 
 
1. OPEN SESSION 

President Bradford opened the regularly scheduled Board meeting at 1:00 PM at the Big Bear 
Municipal Water District located at 40524 Lakeview Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 on Thursday 
July 6, 2023.  

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Steve Ludecke, Vice President 
Bob Rehfuss, Director 
Craig Brewster, Director 
Mark Lee, Director 
Tom Bradford, President 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Steve Ludecke 
 

3. PUBLIC FORUM 
Crisann Conroy, a resident of Big Bear Lake, wanted to request a dock length extension to her already out 
of compliance placed dock. She presented a few documents and drawings made by Larry Cooke. She would 
like her and her neighbors to be able to go out further than the 70ft limit stated in the resolution. She then 
showed photos of her dock confirming it is still out of compliance as of July 6th even though a violation was 
sent by the district to have her move her dock to become compliant. President Bradford referred these 
issues to the operations committee. 
 
4. REPORTS 

A.  Mr. Stephenson reported the 4th had 650 boats out on the water, there were a couple incidents, 
     but only minor, so that was a good thing. 
B.  The admin committee reported that all their business was on the agenda today and they would 
     discuss then. 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of a Regular Meeting on June 15, 2023. 
B. Warrant list dated 6/30/2023 in the amount of $105,238.76. 

Discussion:  
No comments were made. 
 
With a motion made by Vice President Ludecke, and seconded by Director Brewster, the consent calendar 
was unanimously approved. 
 
Mr. Stephenson asked President Bradford, before we move on, considering the admin committee choose 
to not move forward with the community fish center because of lack of support from the board, I need to 
request we remove business items 6C, 6D, and 6E as they all relate to that future effort. President 
Bradford agreed, and those items are to be remove from the agenda and discussion. 
 
 
 



MINUTES/BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Page 2 
Thursday, July 6, 2023 
 
6. BUSINESS 
A. Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a recommendation for full Board 
consideration regarding GEI Consultants Change Order #2 to Task Order #7 for additional funds to finish 
the permitting process for the marina deepening project including a possible first responders boat ramp. 
 
Discussion:  
Mr. Stephenson explained this is for additional environmental work needed to include an additional launch 
ramp on the west side of the jetty for emergency use and district use only. This additional work will cost 
$78,976. 
 
With a motion from Vice President Ludecke, seconded by Director Lee, the change order for task order 7, 
not to exceed $78,976 was unanimously approved. 
 
 
B. Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a recommendation regarding the 
CSDA Election candidates and who the District should support for the upcoming Board election. 
 
Discussion:  
Mr. Stephenson explained the admin committee recommends Al Nederhood for CSDA Board elections. 
 
With a motion from Vice President Ludecke, seconded by Director Brewster, Al Nederhood for CSDA 
Southern California region was unanimously approved. 
 
C. Removed from agenda. 
D. Removed from agenda. 
E. Removed from agenda. 
 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
N/A 
 
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Mr. Stephenson wanted to thank Directors Ludecke and Brewster for coming to the carp tournament. 
Ludecke sold $465 more raffle tickets than in years past so huge thank you for that. And glad to see 
Brewster and the whole family was able to make it. There ended up being 137 participants and a ton of fish 
were shot.  
9. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 
10. ADJOURN 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:09 PM. 
 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
            Date:   July 20, 2023 
      Location:  40524 Lakeview Drive 
           Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 
            Time: 1:00 PM 
 
                                                      
Mike Stephenson, Deputy Secretary to the Board of 
 Directors of Big Bear Municipal Water District 
         [SEAL] 



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

160790 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

76277 Bill 06/07/2023 5520-01 ꞏ ADMIN-District Counsel -4,547.83
76795 Bill 07/10/2023 5520-01 ꞏ ADMIN-District Counsel -684.40

TOTAL -5,232.23

160791 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 ALL PROTECTION ALARM 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1366945 Bill 07/05/2023 5630-10 ꞏ ADMIN-Bldg/Facility Maint/Rep -67.50
1366891 Bill 07/05/2023 5630-10 ꞏ ADMIN-Bldg/Facility Maint/Rep -239.04
1367293 Bill 07/05/2023 5640-02 ꞏ WATER-Dam Maintenance -245.40
1367206 Bill 07/05/2023 5630-10 ꞏ ADMIN-Bldg/Facility Maint/Rep -91.70

TOTAL -643.64

160792 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

13VD-J... Bill 06/22/2023 5670-05 ꞏ WATER-Carp Roundup Expense -245.96
1XCV-V... Bill 06/23/2023 5503-01 ꞏ ADMIN-Office Supplies-Office -51.49
119G-1... Bill 06/25/2023 5670-05 ꞏ WATER-Carp Roundup Expense -244.03

TOTAL -541.48

160793 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 ATWELL SHAWN (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

06/01-0... Bill 06/30/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

160777 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 BBARWA 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1827 Bill 06/30/2023 5670-04 ꞏ WATER-Fishery Mgmt-Carp/Electro -4,092.00

TOTAL -4,092.00

160778 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

968762 Bill 07/04/2023 5520-01 ꞏ ADMIN-District Counsel -3,113.67

TOTAL -3,113.67

160779 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 BUTCHER'S BLOCK AND BUILDING ... 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

2306-83... Bill 06/16/2023 5670-05 ꞏ WATER-Carp Roundup Expense -95.33

TOTAL -95.33

160794 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 BUTCHER'S BLOCK AND BUILDING ... 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

2306-84... Bill 06/23/2023 5630-31 ꞏ MAINT-Bldg/Facil Maint/Rep-Shop -10.06
5600-33 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-HARVESTER -21.55

2306-84... Bill 06/30/2023 5640-02 ꞏ WATER-Dam Maintenance -30.02
2307-84... Bill 07/06/2023 5543-30 ꞏ MAINT-Small Tools/Tool Supplies -73.05
2307-85... Bill 07/07/2023 5632-01 ꞏ MAINT-SS Repairs/Portables -15.55

TOTAL -150.23

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 BVE (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

062720... Bill 06/27/2023 5507-22 ꞏ WATER-Utilities-Dam -71.53
062720... Bill 06/27/2023 5507-41 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Main Office -206.43

TOTAL -277.96

160795 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 CRICKET CONSULTING 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1283 Bill 05/05/2023 5640-02 ꞏ WATER-Dam Maintenance -190.00

TOTAL -190.00

12:54 PM Big Bear MWD

07/14/23 Warrant List Detail
July 1 - 14, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 1



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

160780 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 CSB AUDITOR-CONTROLLER/TREA... 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

180000... Bill 07/01/2023 5509-01 ꞏ ADMIN-LAFCO fee -10,000.00

TOTAL -10,000.00

160796 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 CSB WATER AND SANITATION 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

323422 Bill 06/30/2023 5507-43 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Ramps -123.92
323389 Bill 06/30/2023 5507-43 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Ramps -123.92

TOTAL -247.84

160781 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

INV782... Bill 07/01/2023 5506-41 ꞏ OPS-Radio Service Contract -166.70

TOTAL -166.70

160797 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 FERRELLGAS 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

RNT985... Bill 06/23/2023 5631-03 ꞏ OPS-Quagga Prev Fuel/Kerosine -12.00

TOTAL -12.00

160782 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 GEIGER SUPPLY 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

174575 Bill 06/13/2023 5630-43 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn/Rep-WEST RAMP -24.67

TOTAL -24.67

160783 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 HOOVER BEN (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

5/31-06/... Bill 07/16/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

160784 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 MCMASTER-CARR 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

99735866 Bill 06/20/2023 5600-33 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-HARVESTER -132.51

TOTAL -132.51

160798 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 MOONRIDGE FUEL HAUPT RALPH 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

06302023 Bill 06/30/2023 5590-42 ꞏ OPS-Petroleum-VEHICLES -137.01
5590-41 ꞏ OPS-Petroleum-VESSELS -600.84

TOTAL -737.85

160799 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 MOUNTAIN WATER COMPANY 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

94623-1... Bill 07/03/2023 5507-43 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Ramps -185.00

TOTAL -185.00

160785 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 NAPA AUTO PARTS 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

NAPA AUTO PARTS 2200-00 ꞏ Accounts Payable Liability 10.08
609126 Bill 06/21/2023 5600-31 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-ON ROAD -319.91
609503 Bill 06/27/2023 5600-33 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-HARVESTER -183.89

TOTAL -493.72

160800 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 NAPA AUTO PARTS 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

NAPA AUTO PARTS 2200-00 ꞏ Accounts Payable Liability 0.29
609029 Bill 06/20/2023 5600-31 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-ON ROAD -86.19
609604 Bill 06/28/2023 5600-33 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-HARVESTER -47.08
609619 Bill 06/28/2023 5600-33 ꞏ MAINT-Vehicle Maint-HARVESTER -71.05
610339 Bill 07/10/2023 5543-30 ꞏ MAINT-Small Tools/Tool Supplies -14.54

12:54 PM Big Bear MWD

07/14/23 Warrant List Detail
July 1 - 14, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 2



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -218.57

160786 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 QUILL LLC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

32952480 Bill 06/12/2023 5509-03 ꞏ ADMIN-Memberships-Subscriptions -75.41

TOTAL -75.41

160776 Bill Pmt -Check 07/01/2023 SBVMWD 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

07012023 Bill 07/01/2023 5770-20 ꞏ Water Purchase In-Lieu -1,982,880.16

TOTAL -1,982,880.16

160801 Bill Pmt -Check 07/14/2023 SCHERMER MICHAEL (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

071202... Bill 07/12/2023 5570-01 ꞏ ADMIN-Training/Seminars-GM -68.09

TOTAL -68.09

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 SPECTRUM BUSINESS (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

014074... Bill 06/23/2023 5505-08 ꞏ ADMIN- Phone Office -283.83

TOTAL -283.83

160787 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 VOICE CARRIER 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

IN13286 Bill 07/02/2023 5505-01 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Local/Hardware/Rep -110.02

TOTAL -110.02

160789 Bill Pmt -Check 07/13/2023 WESTLAKE LAKE MANAGEMENT 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

06062023 Bill 07/06/2023 5670-01 ꞏ WATER-Fishery Management -6,000.00

TOTAL -6,000.00

160788 Bill Pmt -Check 07/06/2023 XEROX CORPORATION 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

4481180 Bill 07/04/2023 2950-03 ꞏ Copier Lease -353.34

TOTAL -353.34

12:54 PM Big Bear MWD

07/14/23 Warrant List Detail
July 1 - 14, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 3



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE:   July 20, 2023       AGENDA ITEM: 6A 
SUBJECT: 
Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a recommendation for full 
Board consideration regarding the bids received from Bear Valley Paving and NPG for the district’s 
main office parking lot improvement project. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
The administrative committee will have a recommendation for full Board consideration after 
considering who is the lowest responsible bidder. 

DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The project was published starting May 31, 2023. The notice was sent to 18 contractors as well as 
being published in the local new paper. Three contractors attended the mandatory job walk on 
June 7. Of those three contracts, two submitted bids. After legal reviewed the complete bid 
packets that were submitted, there was only one bidder who submitted a responsive bid. The 
responsive bidder in this case was NPG.  

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
FINANCING: Capital Improvement 

Submitted by:  Mike Stephenson, General Manager 









































































BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE:   July 20, 2023       AGENDA ITEM: 6B 
SUBJECT: 
Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke and Brewster) will have a recommendation for full 
Board consideration regarding the bids received from Bear Valley Paving and NPG for the east 
ramp parking lot improvement project. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
The administrative committee will have a recommendation for full Board consideration after 
considering who is the lowest responsible bidder. 

DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The project was published starting May 31, 2023. The notice was sent to 18 contractors as well as 
being published in the local new paper. Three contractors attended the mandatory job walk on 
June 7. Of those three contracts, two submitted bids. After legal reviewed the complete bid 
packets that were submitted, there was only one bidder who submitted a responsive bid. The 
responsive bidder in this case was NPG.  

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
FINANCING: Capital Improvement 

Submitted by:  Mike Stephenson, General Manager 
























































































	7-20-2023 Board Agenda-only
	7-6-2023 Board Minutes draft
	07.14.2023 Warrant List Detail
	0720-6A-StaffReport
	NPG - Full Bid Packet - Main Office
	BearValleyPaving - Full Bid Packet - Main Office
	0720-6B-StaffReport
	NPG - Full Bid Packet - East Ramp
	BearValleyPaving Full Bid Packet - East Ramp

